
Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 1 

November 2, 2016 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2016 

MINUTES 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 

UTAH, met for a Work Meeting on Wednesday, November 2, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. in the City 

Council Chambers of the Town Hall at 2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 

 

Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 

member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum 

and also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least 

two days before the meeting. 

 

Present:    Mayor Rick Rosenberg           

Council Members: Ken Sizemore, Herb Basso and Jarett Waite 

      City Manager:         Edward Dickie 

Secretary:       Gina Wathen  

 

Others Present: Brock Jacobsen, Assistant City Manager; Jack Taylor, Public Works Director; 

Brad Hays, Parks Director; Corey Bundy, Building Official; Dan Nelson, Fire Chief; Rex 

Oliver; Fred J. Fagergren; Aron Baker; Rick Hansen 

  

1. Call to Order:  Mayor Rosenberg called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 

 

 - Councilwoman Mary Jo (Tode) Hafen and Councilman Jerry Amundsen were excused. 

  

2. Working Agenda:  
 

A. General Business: 

 

1. Crosswalk/Pedestrian Discussion  

 

- Mayor Rosenberg requested for this item to be tabled until the City gets additional 

information from Washington County School District on their safe routes.  

 

3.   Short-Term Rental Discussion  

 

- Kenny Jacobsen from Orange County, California and Bob Peterson, City 

Administrator for Garden City introduced themselves over the phone; they will be 

participating in a presentation. 

- Ed Dickie, City Manager, gave an online presentation. 

- Bob Peterson said they had had some issues with short-term rentals in their town.  He 

said that trying to work through the issues, they found software that was a good 

solution for them.  He said before, their office staff would look on numerous websites 

compiling data trying to find short-term rentals to get them licensed in their city.  He 

said their city is very pro short-term rentals but they wanted them to be safe and 

registered and they didn’t have a great process to do that.  They ended up bringing in 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 2 

November 2, 2016 

Kenny Jacobsen and his short-term rental software. 

- Kenny Jacobsen stated that he had 18 years of programming experience.  He said that 

he and Bob and John worked together in creating the software.  He said he is the one 

who did the actual coding and building.   

- Bob Peterson said that what they were finding was that software alone doesn’t fix the 

problem but it’s the leadership, City Council, Planning and Zoning, the City Staff and 

their abilities to find and address the issues and the community, the residents, the 

business owners, the tourists, the second home owners trying to figure out the best way 

to manage, enforce, collect taxes and that was the reason for getting the software 

created.  They had a lot of short-term rentals that weren’t licensed or paying their 

taxes.  This was causing issues for the property managers who were doing all these 

things.  They were putting pressure back on the city leaders to do something about 

these short-term rentals that didn’t have proper management and proper enforcement.  

He said that the larger section of the application is the managing and finding the short-

term rentals.  It’s getting them licensed and in compliance with the city’s ordinances.  

The second part of the application is finding the listings that are on the internet.  He 

said that their software goes out to over 20 different sites now, pulls that data and 

displays them in the system.  He went on to explain the licensing software and icons.  

He said they have the capability of sending letters to people if their license is about to 

expire or they are out of compliance for one reason or another.  The system will let the 

city mail letters out.  He said they can track number of guests, maximum parking and 

whether there is common parking.  He said that this is important in the licensing 

process.  He said when they do their building inspections, they set how many guests 

can stay in a place and how many parking spots they are allowed to have.  It they have 

more parking and guests then their license allows the city can contact the property 

manager to deal with that situation.  If it’s not dealt with then code enforcement gets 

involved.  The software also stores emergency contact information.  He said that if a 

call comes in that there is an issue with the city knows who to call and who to deal 

with.  He said there is a place for notes and attachments too.  He said the software can 

track anything that is done on a particular property.  He said that this program is pretty 

mobile.  He said he likes to take his laptop out with him.  He talked about how to find 

the listings that are on the web.  He talked about the validator.  He said the software 

will do the best it can to find listings and match them up with the actual property.  He 

said the daily workflow is to log into the system and take a quick look at what is new 

in the city.  Once new ones are found, they have to be validated.  He talked about the 

validation process.  He said the most properties list on two or more websites.   

- Kenny Jacobsen asked if the Council had any questions. 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked if the City purchases the software do we have to enter all the 

data in or does it merge with some of the City’s existing data.   

- Kenny Jacobsen said that where to start is they get the data from the City.  The City 

would go to the GSI person in the County and they will do an export of all the parcel 

data within Santa Clara City and then they will load that into the system as all the 

properties.  They will then run an initial search on the internet to grab all the listings.  

It is best to match up all the listings with the properties.  It takes the human eye to do 

the actual confirmation.  If the City already has licensing data they can also load that in 

initially.  They just have to make sure the licensing data is tied to a parcel number.  

They can update it on a routine, once a year basis.  Or the City can put them in as the 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 3 

November 2, 2016 

properties get built.  He said that when they get the data they will run some tests on it 

to see if there are any blanks where there is not supposed to be.  If something got 

missed and it isn’t discovered until a few months later, there is an easy way to 

manually enter those properties and tie them to a listing. 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked Bob Peterson if they allow short-term rental throughout 

Garden City. 

- Bob Peterson said yes all zones can have short-term rental except if an HOA clearly 

in their CC&R’s states that they are not allowed to rent.  Then that area is blocked out.  

IF there are zones that the City doesn’t want to have short-term rentals in, they will 

show up in the system and the City can take appropriate action on getting them shut 

down. 

- Herb Basso asked if a zone map overlay can be done on this program.   

- Bob Peterson said they can look into it.  He said they have the ability to put no-rent 

zone overlays on there.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that is probably what the City would want.  He asked how 

many existing clients/cities they have done this for. 

- Bob Peterson said it was made for Garden City and they have done Rich County and 

about ready to do Grand County.  Moab is coming right behind and then Gerhardt, 

Oregon is in the testing phase now.  Arrowhead, California is just starting the process.  

Depending on how big the City is, is how long it takes to get it up and running.  He 

said it takes a few weeks to get the County data.  Then they will clean it and go over all 

the problems that they find in it.  Once they sign off on all the data, they get it loaded 

and it takes about 3 to 4 weeks to be ready to go into production.  Best-case scenario is 

6 weeks.   

- Mayor Rosenberg asked about the costs.  How are costs determined?    

- Bob Peterson said that costs are determined by how many short-term rentals are in a 

particular area in the City.  He said they would need to run the analysis to figure that 

out.  He said he could start at $2,500 per year that includes one user license and then 

there is an implementation fee of $3,000 and that is a one-time fee.  He said that 

sometimes multiple code enforcers or admin would want their own licenses.  That 

would be an additional cost. 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked how big this operation is.  Would they be able to support 

everyone if they get a rush.  Are they adequately staffed for future demand.   

- Bob Peterson said they can handle implementing about 5 clients at a time without too 

much issue.   

- Kenny Jacobsen said they are a start-up.  They started about a year and a half ago.  

They are interviewing their first employee.  He said they are fine but they are also 

prepared to bring more people on if they start getting taxed. 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked what the biggest glitch is that they have had so far. 

- Ken Jacobsen said that it has been data.  He said they have been surprised at how 

inaccurate data has been coming from the counties.  He said they are now developing 

some tools to help them identify the data when they first get it to correct those.  

- Mayor Rosenberg thanked Bob and Kenny and told them they would probably hear 

from Staff.  He said he could see where it could save a lot of Staff time. 

- Bob Peterson said that if anyone would like a demo, they would be happy to go to the 

meeting and set it up and do it for them. 

-  Mayor Rosenberg told them that the City would probably be in touch with them 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 4 

November 2, 2016 

fairly quickly.  He ended the phone call. 

- Herb Basso talked about the number of short-term rentals in the City. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that the City is going to see more short-term rentals coming.  

He said that the annual cost of this could be worked into the license fee structure so it 

could pay for itself.  He said that this will be turned over to Staff and they will be 

asked to bring the Council a proposal.  

 

2. EDC Presentation 

 

- Rex Oliver from the EDC stated that they have been working for several months.  He 

said ideas have come up and so they have requested this time to visit with the City 

Council about some of the things the EDC have been doing.  He said that Councilman 

Basso attends their meetings.  He said the first item on the agenda is that the Council 

gave them a challenge to come up with a mission statement for the EDC.  He said he 

would like to present for approval from the City Council to be placed on their webpage 

this mission statement: “To promote an environment friendly to economic 

development with particular attention to maintaining and encouraging the values and 

quality of life historically found here.”  He said he also wants to present an issue that 

has come up in the last week or so.  They received notice from Lance Allred, who is a 

member of the EDC that he is resigning from the Commission after many years of 

service.  He said they would like an opportunity to recognize him in some form for his 

service to the City either by citation or some plaque or a notice in the newsletter.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said there is obviously recognition at the Planning Commission 

Meetings and sometimes there are parting gifts at Council.   

- Herb Basso said that maybe they can formalize something. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said there could be a plaque or certificate or something.   

- Rex Oliver said they would appreciate that.  Lance Allred has done a phenomenal 

job.  He had lots of concerns about the downtown area especially. 

- Ed Dickie asked for his years of service.  He asked Rex Oliver to send him an email 

with that information.   

- Rex Oliver said that along those same lines, Jeriah Threlfall, who is with the St. 

George Economic Development Group.  They have approached Jeriah about the 

possibility of service for the EDC because he is a resident of Santa Clara.  He has 

agreed that he will be willing to do that so they would like to submit his name for 

approval to serve on the Commission. 

- Herb Basso said to officially do that, it could be put on the agenda for next week’s 

City Council Meeting.  Can we put that on the agenda for approval of Jeriah Threlfall 

for the Commission?   

- Rex Oliver said that they have addressed a number of topics of opportunities for 

development in Santa Clara.  He said they realize that their job is to make suggestions 

and find ways to raise revenue and interest in the City.  He proceeded to talk about 

them and said these are very pursuable.   First are the petroglyphs west of town.  There 

is a lot of traffic coming through the City to visit the petroglyphs. He said that 

increasing the numbers by somehow publicizing the petroglyphs as adjacent to our 

location, that we may be able to generate a higher volume of traffic through our City 

and invite people to think about Santa Clara when they think about the petroglyphs.  

We have a lot of resource here with our proximity to the local Tribe, the Shivwits, and 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 5 

November 2, 2016 

feel it would be very useful to approach them about developing a visitor’s type park, or 

center for entertainment and activity that hinges on a Native American theme, village 

and that in conjunction with the petroglyphs could be quite a draw for our area if we 

could find ways to develop those.   

- Herb Basso said he doesn’t see too much of a negative but because they are out of 

Santa Clara we would partner with Ivins on it.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that Santa Clara is a partner with Ivins on the river reserve.  

He said that we are already partnered. 

- Rex Oliver asked about the BLM.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said there are private parcels out there.  Anasazi Valley is privately 

owned.   

- Rex Oliver said that bicycle trails are growing in demand here in Southern Utah.  We 

can develop trails, which will attract large groups for leisure riding as well as 

sanctioned races.  It will be vital for bringing more people in.  We would eventually be 

able to sponsor races that become nationally known.  It would be useful to involve 

some of the businesses in the area that specialize in that type of commerce.   

- Ken Sizemore said that the City has two nationally known races that run on our 

ground. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that the high school races would love to come to Santa Clara if 

the City had the infrastructure to make it work. 

- Herb Basso said the City needs to infrastructure to make it happen and this will be a 

great economic impact. 

- Rex Oliver said that it is his understanding that a rifle range has been talked about. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that it was in pursuit. 

- Rex Oliver said that one of the things that is lacking in this area is a facility that is 

considered to be a long-range rifle range.  He said the nearest long-range is in Price.  

For the shorter range, it has more participation.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said the County put the RFP out for the design this week.   

- Rex Oliver said they recommend that they partner with Ivins to capitalize on the 

crowds that they have going to Tuacahn.  There are thousands of people going there 

that have no place to enjoy time after for dining, etc.   

- Herb Basso asked how to go about that.  Should we contact Bradi and have her 

initiate discussions with Ivins and what the City wants to do and then meet with them.  

Should Staff contact Staff.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said it needs to be fine-tuned a little bit more what exactly they 

want to do.  If we really want to take advantage of the people going to Tuacahn, we 

need additional accommodations and dining opportunities. 

- Ed Dickie said that he would recommend that the EDC meets with the Ivins EDC and 

go over some ideas how the two cities can partner.  Staff is always willing, once we are 

headed in the direction, to help out in any way.  If there is a website that the EDC 

develops with all the businesses and details about them, it would be no problem for the 

EDC to create that and Bradi can make a link to go to once we feel that website is 

appropriate.  It can explain the business and maybe include coupons. 

- Herb Basso said that after we meet with the Ivins EDC it would be good to ask 

Tuacahn to meet with us both and see how we can get them to publicize the Cities and 

their business to their clientele.  That’s where we want to head. 

- Ken Sizemore said that the Visitor’s Bureau is already spending money to put the 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 6 

November 2, 2016 

websites out.  There is one on galleries that is already up and running that has the 

galleries listed.  It wouldn’t be too difficult to add businesses on to the galleries. 

- Rex Oliver said that brings him to the next point which is website utilization.  He 

doesn’t know if it could be done on the City’s website but maybe there could be a page 

on there that gives a description of every business that has a license in the City written 

and edited appropriately to provide information on what these businesses offer.  It will 

help increase retail opportunity and future development.  He said they feel that there 

should be a directory for businesses and points of interest.  It could be somewhere 

located in the City in proximity to City Hall or the entrance locations of the City.   

- Ken Sizemore said that a great place to put that would be across from Town Hall.  

There could be an interpretive kiosk put there. 

- Rex Oliver said they would like to recognize the individual businesses in a spotlight 

either in the City newsletter or website.  It would be good to introduce the businesses.  

It would help build local support.   

- Ed Dickie said they can try to get that in every time. 

- Rex Oliver asked if there was a budget for economic development to possibly do 

radio spots to get top of mind awareness to Southern Utah residents.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said we can do that now.  We can get the CEC to do some short 

videos.  They will do it for free.  He can give Rex Oliver the name of the person.   

- Herb Basso said that we do have a budget and we can do a formalized request at the 

EDC Meetings.   

- Rex Oliver said that some of the concerns they have noted as a Commission: most of 

the property that is commercially zoned is privately owned except the SITLA property.  

Because it is privately owned, the price for the properties that are currently being asked 

are way above current market value and makes it extremely unaffordable for a small 

business to want to come in and develop.  Because of that discouragement, the EDC 

doesn’t see much immediate opportunity for development.  The next concern is that 

future commercial growth is likely to be inhibited due to lack of availability and 

pricing and they are not aware of any current plans to expand commercial zoning. 

Also, maintaining our current status as a “bedroom community” of St. George places 

significant financial pressure on our residents to pay the expenses of maintaining our 

city infrastructure with higher property taxes and utilities fees, due to the limited 

revenue available to the city resulting from lower volume of commercial retail sales.  

He said in order for that to change, they would like to see the City take some steps to 

increase the availability of commercial ground in the existing City limits.  The EDC 

recommends that the City of Santa Clara Council seriously study and put into effect a 

concerted plan of action to annex the land from Santa Clara’s current southern city 

limits (including the South Hills annexation) south to the Utah-Arizona border, and to 

include areas as far west as geographically feasible, as par of the city’s long-term plans 

for growth and development.  He said they believe this action would put the city into 

position to take advantage of future growth along the proposed “Western Corridor” and 

give notice to all entities of Santa Clara’s long-term plans for expansion and growth.  

Though the Western Corridor is only in initial long-term planning stages, its future 

development will give the city closer access to I-15 - something that many companies 

require for consideration as a site location for their operations.  They believe this 

approach to long-term panning will bring employment opportunities to our citizens, 

growth for our community, and increase the city’s revenue base with establishment of 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 7 

November 2, 2016 

retail businesses being supported buy a significant increase in population in our city, 

while at the same time, maintain the historic nature of the current downtown area of 

Santa Clara.  He said one of the things that seems to collide is development and 

maintaining the historic nature or our City.  He said that this gives an opportunity to 

have two sections of our City, a historic section and a future development south of 

town.  It opens up huge opportunities for our City.  He said that there is concerns that if 

we do that the City would have to police the area, provide service to it.  He said his 

research has indicated the just because the City annexes a location, it doesn’t mean the 

City is responsible to police it until there is development in that area.  He gave 

examples of Hurricane.  He said that this recommendation is a very viable 

recommendation.  It would increase the City’s size so significantly as to be 

geographically the same size as St. George.  He said that we could even go a step 

further and annex clear to the Nevada border.  He said he would not eliminate that 

from a long-term plan.   

- Herb Basso said that a lot of this has been discussed before by Council and at EDC.  

An important part of this meeting is to get on the same page and get direction from 

Council as to how they want the EDC to get involved.  What direction do you want 

them to work on? 

- Ken Sizemore said that there are two initiatives going on right now that the EDC 

needs to be involved with.  One is the revision of the General Plan for the South Hills.  

The other one is the SITLA 10 acres.  He said that he and Ellen Madsen, who is the co-

chair of the Commission visited with SITLA and talked with Kyle Pasley about their 

thoughts on that property and what they would like to do.  They have some interest in 

developing that as an educational and cultural center.  He said that originally he 

thought it would be wonderful to develop that as a sort of themed destination for retail 

for the arts.  He said that the EDC is tasked with the economic growth of the area so 

anything that comes up short of that on property that is zoned specifically for that, they 

don’t want to see it go to apartments, they wanted to see that developed in conjunction 

with some type of commercial development.  He said in talking with Kyle, he thinks he 

is on course.  The idea of an arts venue would be dynamic for drawing people.  He said 

he is very supportive of his idea.   

- Mayor Rosenberg asked if he was supportive of SITLA’s idea even with the 

residential component included as part of the overall thing. 

- Rex Oliver said that he wouldn’t put up any further objection.   

- Mayor Rosenberg explained that Council has asked Kyle Pasley to come back with 

the whole 10 acres so that the plan is part of the whole thing with some ties to make 

sure there is the art center and if the 2-acre phase is a residential phase to make sure 

that it is part of a bigger picture plan.  There is still some discussion going on on that 

plan.  This will be coming back for a General Plan Amendment as the whole 10-acres.  

He said he would love to hear the EDC weigh in on that. 

- Rex Oliver said he has no objections as long as there is room for commercial growth 

in there.  He said he can only speak for himself, not as the Commission because they 

have not discussed this.   

- Mayor Rosenberg asked him to put that on an agenda to discuss.  Council and the 

Planning Commission will be interested in hearing that recommendation from the 

EDC.  The General Plan Amendment would be the whole 10 acres and a development 

agreement would go along with it so the City would know what they are getting if it 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 8 

November 2, 2016 

was approved.   

- Rex Oliver said that after some discussion on how they might promote, some of the 

original thought was to utilize this property because it is the entrance to Santa Clara 

was to build a Swiss themed village of sorts.  He said but as they talked about this, 

people don’t think of Southern Utah as Swiss villages.  He said they decided that Swiss 

is not something people are thinking about when they come to the Southern Utah 

desert.  Many visitors come for the activities and environment provided by area and 

natural resources.  Many leave with the thought that they want to settle here someday 

because of the environment, the people and the lifestyle they encounter.  He said that 

the EDC came up with the following proposals: Santa Clara City should pursue 

opportunities that capitalize on the resources of the area, expand our current city limits 

to include future growth potential by annexing the area from South Hills to the Utah-

Arizona border, discover ways to promote our area natural resources and beauty, and 

further expand the opportunities to make Santa Clara a multiple-day stay over for out-

of-town visitors. He said that in conclusion this represents some of the steps Santa 

Clara City can take to enhance our city’s long-term future and improve its image as a 

location where people will find employment opportunity and financial stability and 

enable their families to remain here for generations to come.  He said they believe 

these steps, when implemented, will enhance commerce and increase the city’s revenue 

needs as we continue to grow, without placing undue tax burden on our residents to 

shoulder the costs of city operations and development.  He said that the single greatest 

thing that we can do to that end is to expand our current City limits and annex that 

property.  He said he is willing to serve in any type of capacity to help find out what 

needs to be done.  He said they have some talented people on the Commission 

including an attorney, a civil engineer, commercial real estate agent, a private business 

developer.  He said they can be a valuable resource for the Council in helping achieve 

these objectives.   

- Mayor Rosenberg said that they would need to look at the private land availability. 

- Jarett Waite talked about how a lot of it is BLM land. 

- Ken Sizemore said that the current General Plan process the City is going through 

will help identify whether this is an effective approach or not.  Looking at the BLM 

new resource management plan, he doesn’t think there will be much move to disposing 

of much of that public land into private ownership.  He doesn’t see that happening 

south of where the City is already annexed.  There are too many resource values out 

there that they want to protect.  He doesn’t see them ever wanting to dispose of any of 

that property. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that SITLA has some holdings out west of Bloomington.  But 

for Santa Clara to provide services, we’d have to go through miles of BLM property.  

He said he likes that the EDC is thinking big.  It’s worth exploring to see what is 

available out there. 

- Rex Oliver said that when the Western Corridor is put in, something magical happens 

along those roads.  Just because it is undevelopable right now doesn’t mean we should 

not at least let them see what our 50 and 100 year plan is for expansion and growth.  A 

lot of things change over time but is we haven’t made the effort to do it and given 

notice and at least studied the opportunities that are available out there then nothing 

will happen.  If we show our intent then we usually find method and means to make 

things happen and get exceptions and get exchanges.  He said there are 40 acres right 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 9 

November 2, 2016 

now that one Santa Clara resident has that is adjacent to BLM property that he is 

willing to exchange specifically for the City to develop commercial enterprise.   

 

4.   Power Impact Fee Discussion   

 

- Jack Taylor said they took this back and made some changes.  He said they had some 

comments from SUBA and he said they answered their questions and found a couple 

of errors in a formula that needed to be changed.  It was our formula. It had to do with 

impact fees that were going to be charged to the power department on the City 

Building. It was fixed and the changes were sent to SUBA and they are fine with the 

impact fees now. 

- Rick Hansen gave a slide presentation on the impact fees.  He said there was some 

concern expressed on the number of customers projected so they back off the 

residential customers from 108 down to 80.  He said the utilization factors to match 

KW demand for residential and commercial were increase slightly.  Previously they 

were at 12 ½ and 15% and now they are 15 and 17 ½ % for residential and 

commercial.   The Paul Grimshaw sub has been completed so they’ll note those as 

completed. It has been removed from the IFA.   Jack Taylor updated what the current 

Impact Fee balance was.  That was changed to the $450,000.  The administration 

building costs were changed to the $205,290.  All the references in the table to the 

100A panels were removed from the fee calculations.  Because the $205,290 was 

changed, it reduces the net dollar per KW charge to $586.  Some changes had the effect 

of increasing the fee others have the effect of lowering it.  The net result was about a 

$50 difference on a 200 Amp service then what was presented previously.  He said 

they went through it with a fine-toothed comb and it’s a little more bullet proof as far 

as analysis.  He said he feels this is a good fee to proceed with.  He said that basically 

the 200 Amp residential will drop about $900 for the current.  All the rest will increase.  

The commercial will go up and large residential will go up as well.  He said if Council 

is okay with that, we need to finalize a few text items in the report and he will get that 

to Council.  He said the layman’s summary has condensed the 40-50 page report into 

about 2 pages.  It pulls the main highlights and numbers out of the main study.   

- Ed Dickie asked if the recommended fee is $586.11. 

- Rick Hansen said yes, for KW.  He said the two formulas are how it is calculated 

based on a given panel size.  He said that through the assumptions that are outlined in 

the main report, that is how to arrive at the KW for given panel size and then multiply 

that by the $586.11 to get the end result.  It’s a straightforward way.  Everyone is 

treated the same in a given class.  It is a lot easier to defend or to justify. 

- Ed Dickie said as part of the MBA bond, this is one of the utilities that isn’t helping 

to pay for it.  With this, we will be able to use some of that $205,000 to go towards the 

MBA.  He said that we are going to look at updating the Impact Fee for Water also 

within this next year because it isn’t contributing to the MBA bond.   

- Jarett Waite said he is excited to see that Santa Clara will be competitive with other 

cities.  It looks really good. 

- Rick Hansen said that Santa Clara will stack up really well with other neighboring 

cities.  Commercially Santa Clara is still really competitive.  

- Jack Taylor said he thinks we are ready to approve this in the next Council Meeting.   

- Rick Hansen said they will leave the draft on until it goes through Public Hearings.   



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 10 

November 2, 2016 

- Ed Dickie told Jack Taylor he will have to have it on the City Council agenda for 

next week, November 9, to set a Public Hearing.  Then that will be for the December 

City Council Meeting, the second Wednesday in December.  That will be the earliest it 

can be put on.  Council will probably cancel the Meeting the day before Thanksgiving. 

 

 

1. Staff Reports: 

 

Fire Chief Dan Nelson 

- October was busy.  Over 120 elementary school students from Arrowhead Elementary 

Kindergarten came to the Fire House.  It’s a lot of people but a good time.  They give out 

hats and stickers.  There has also been 4 different Scout Groups that month.   

- Apparatus Operator Class is going really well.  Students come from across the County.  

We are hosting it and Utah Fire Rescue Academy is providing instructors.  There are 4 

students from Santa Clara.  Testing is December 3.   

- We are at 340 calls so far.  

 

Brock Jacobsen 

- The Audit Fieldwork was completed.  The Audit report will be presented at the 

December 14 City Council Meeting.   

- The Economic Summit is in January.  Everyone needs to get registered.  He said to let 

him know if you need to get registered. 

- The Christmas party is Thursday, December 8 about 6:30.  He said invitations will get 

out next week.  Herb Basso asked if they do a volunteer dinner.  Brock said it is usually in 

March. 

- UCMA Conference is tomorrow in Provo.  He said while they are there, they are going to 

be meeting with John Bronson regarding one of the electric bonds to refund that.  It looks 

favorable now.   

- The CIB loan funding came through on the landslide.  He said they will be bringing in at 

the December Meeting to get that process moving forward.  He said we should be closing 

on that some time in January. Mayor Rosenberg said that the appraisals are expected to be 

done by Monday. 

 

Brad Hays 

- Hwy 91 landscaping is going in on the east and north sides of the road.  Trees are in from 

Jacob Hamblin all the way up to 200 East in Ivins.   

- They are working on the Plant List. 

- The Santa Clara entrance sign is almost complete.  There is still some stucco to do and 

some landscaping and lighting.  Mayor Rosenberg asked about the lighting outside City 

Hall.  Brad said that the one of the parts was missing for the solar kit.  As soon as the part 

comes they will put it in.  The panel will be a little bit above the sign on a pole.   

- He said they got a letter from the BLM that we have gotten through the first stage for the 

RP&P and BLM is ready for the City to hire someone to do the environmental assessment 

and the EAS.  He said he is waiting for a checklist from the BLM so he can go out and 

provide that to contractors and then they will go out and get 3 bids and get it started.  Ken 

Sizemore asked about where the amphitheater got located on the schematic.  Did it move?  

Brad said that they haven’t moved it but it’s a preliminary design so once it is approved it 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 11 

November 2, 2016 

can be moved around the 52 acre plot. 

- There is a DSU class coming out to the arboretum tomorrow.  This class will do the final 

touches on the cactus garden.  There are about 40 new plants out there.   

- Jarett Waite asked about where the City is at on the Sun Flower Seed Ordinance.  Brad 

said he has never gotten anything from the City Attorney to bring back the Ordinance.  He 

said they have posted signs and they are asking people not to use seed or spit into a cup.  

The first tournament with SU baseball went well.  The tournament last weekend with the 

Rocky Mountain baseball didn’t go so well.  There was still quite a bit of mess afterward.  

Mayor Rosenberg said to raise the cleaning deposit.  Ed Dickie said to keep the deposit 

and not give it back if there is a big mess. 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked where we were at concerning the tree farm.  Brad Hays said that 

so far they just have a location.  Mayor Rosenberg said that Sand Hollow Wash is ready 

for some trees.  Brad says he will get to work on it.  

 

Jack Taylor 

- We are starting our crack sealing.  We are back to full staff.  We are doing the crack 

sealing to prepare for the slurry seal.   

- We have been doing a lot of power installations in the new subdivisions.  We should be 

under budget on that whole project. 

- Well #7 is getting low on production.  It looks like we are going to have to replace the 

bowls on it.  We would like to get it replaced before it blows out the side of the bowl and 

blows out the screen.  We seem to get a lot of sand out of it.  Even replacing the bowl it is 

cheaper water than what we would be paying for from the Water Conservancy District.   

- Well #6 has a little bit of a vibration and we think the bearing is going out just below the 

motor.  When we have them come and pull bowl #7 we will have them take the motor on 

#6 and replace that bearing.   

- He said they met with UAMPS today on the 138 project.  Mayor Rosenberg suggested 

taking the Council on a field trip and showing them the wells and the storage.  Herb Basso 

said he still wants to push increasing the security up there.   

- They met on the Purgatory Substation that is going to be going out by the Fairgrounds.  

Everyone will be a part of this.  The loads are getting big enough in Washington County 

that we are going to have to put that substation in for Dixie Escalante and us.  He said 

discussed right-of-ways and who is going to pay what portion of this.  

 

Corey Bundy 

- He said that new home permits issued for the fiscal year 2016-17 were at 36.  September 

there were 12 permits.  New home permits in the planning process were 14.  There are 

currently 125 active building permits.  We have 1 Parade of Homes project that is 

currently under construction in Sycamores Lot 27.  We have a second Parade of Homes 

project currently under construction at Bella Sol Lot 500.  Between October 14 and 

November 2 there have been 307 inspections conducted.   

- He said that he, Fred and Melody are all continuing to do testing for certifications.   

- Staff is trying to help with the County and Ivins City, the County Building Official fell 

off a roof and broke both of his heels.  He is back to work now.  He can’t go out in the 

field so we are all helping.  We are reciprocating in time. 

- He discussed Paradise Village and Black Hawk Townhomes.  He said they have sewer 

and power lines. 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 12 

November 2, 2016 

- He said they sent out a new Conditional Use Application to Verizon Wireless.  He hasn’t 

heard back from them.  He said that they will probably be going through the process with 

them in January.  They came to TRC and they told them they would send them an 

application.  He said he believes they are looking at the same site with a 60-foot tower. 

- Bella Sol Phase 4 is going to Planning Commission for Final Plat. 

- There are Public Hearings for the Master Transportation Plan.  Plantation Drive, Claw 

Drive, Patricia Drive and a East/West road above Harmons all on there for updating the 

General Plan.  He said they wanted to see if they could get a road from Red Mountain over 

to Rachel.  This is on the Master Plan.   

- He said the Front Awning Set Back will also go to Planning Commission.   

- Cottonwood Creek is coming in.  Loni Gubler wants to do a four-lot subdivision with a 

cul-de-sac that’s coming to Planning Commission for a Preliminary Plat and Council will 

see it shortly thereafter. 

- We are anticipating a Café Rio, and maybe a Subway and a bank on the Harmons corner. 

- Staff is in process of reviewing recordings for Snow Canyon Estates, Kent Frei’s parcel, 

43 lots, Bella Sol Phase 4.  We are also looking at Bella Sol Phase 6 & 7.  They’re grading 

and they want to reduce their Phase 6 & 7 by seven lots.  They are taking the smaller lots 

and combining them and making them bigger lots.  He doesn’t think there is a problem 

with it.  He said they comply with the ordinance.  Does Council want it to come back 

through.  It meets the Ordinance for the zone that it’s in.  He said Council will see it at 

Final Plat.  They have Preliminary Plat approval now.  The road will not change at all.   

- He said they are going to have the Citizen Advisory Committee tomorrow.  We are 

meeting at 5 p.m.  They will see a short film explaining how the General Plan works, 

what’s involved in developing the General Plan.  Mayor Rosenberg said that this group is 

not an alternative to the Planning Commission; it is a resource for the Planning 

Commission so they need to meet together.  He told Corey to encourage the Planning 

Commission to come to this meeting tomorrow. He said they are giving the Citizen 

Advisory Committee General Plan books and maps.  Mayor Rosenberg asked Corey to 

make sure Rex Oliver is on that list.  He said he will email him. 

- Bob Nicholson will be working with Winston and Associates on the General Plan update.   

- He said they are still working on Code Enforcement.  The trailer on Gubler Drive is gone.  

It was the homeowner’s brother-in-law who owned it.  They are working on some parking 

issues up there.  There is one that Tode Hafen is concerned about on Desert Dawn and 

Crestview.  He said they will continue to monitor it.  There is a car issue on Windmill 

Drive.  He said they will be sending them a letter and talking to the residents.   

- He said they are sending a letter out to Jenkins Oil.  They have to quit using it as a 

concrete storage yard.  They don’t have approval for it and they don’t have a business 

license.  He talked to the City Attorney and he advised Corey to send them a letter. 

- Mayor Rosenberg talked about the 2019 Building Code.  The Legislature has a 

committee and they would not adopt the 2018 Building Code and they would wait and 

consider it in 2021.  He has written a letter to our Legislature asking them to explain what 

the deal is.  He said that if we haven’t adopted the most recent National Residential Code, 

we’re not eligible for FEMA public assistance or disaster related assistance or hazard 

mitigation grants or predisaster mitigation grants.  He said he has a real concern there.  

Corey said he had a response from Brian Romney, Building Official, saying that the State 

Building Board is going to look at it.  Mayor Rosenberg said that he got some information 

from Brad Bartholomew, our liaison from the Department of Public Safety with FEMA 



Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 13 

November 2, 2016 

sent some information that pointed right at the Legislature Committee.      

 

Ed Dickie 

- In December he wants to bring a proposal about hiring a part-time code enforcement 

officer that helps us out with outstanding warrants and short-term rentals.  That would be 

their primary duties.  He would have some kind of job description.  The Building 

Department doesn’t have the time to enforce any kind of code enforcement.  The Court 

would pay a portion of this persons time for doing the outstanding warrants.  This position 

could pay for itself.  We didn’t have this in the budget but we need to find the money for 

this position.  It is up to the City Council to approve.  He said 25-29 hours would be fine 

for this person but if it has to go more we could look at that.  He doesn’t think it needs to 

be full time right now. 

 

4. Executive Session: None 

 

5. Adjournment: 

 

Meeting Adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

    __________________________    Date Approved: ________________ 

Gina Wathen - Secretary 

 


